
Ds:CPC/2016/2016-07-19 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 

 
The Richardson City Plan Commission met on September 6, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Chairman 
  Ron Taylor, Vice Chair 
  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 
  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 
  Tom Maxwell, Commissioner 
  Randy Roland, Commissioner 
  Ken Southard, Alternate 
  Stephen Springs, Alternate 
 
MEMBER ABSENT: Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner   
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Planning 
  Susan Smith, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Dev. & Eng. 
  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 
 
BRIEFING SESSION 
 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 
staff reports, agenda items and rezoning initiatives.  No action was taken. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 
Note:  Chairman Bright announced that Items 4 and 5 would be heard before Item 3; however, the 
items will be listed in the correct numerical order in the minutes. 
 
MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of August 16, 2016. 

 
Motion: Vice Chair Taylor made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2. Replat – Bush Central Station West Addition:  Consider and take necessary action on a 

request for approval of a replat for Lot 1, Block B of the Bush Central Station West Addition to 
create two (2) lots from a single lot.  The 6.39-acre site is located at 155-165 W. CityLine Drive 
at the southeast corner of Central Expressway and CityLine Drive. 
 
Ms. Smith advised the applicant was requesting the replat to subdivide the track into two (2) lots 
so the western portion, Lot 1A, could be sold. 

  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  2 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments or questions in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve Item 2 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Southard.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

3. Zoning File 16-18 – UTD Transit Oriented Development (continued from August 16, 2016 
meeting):  Consider and take necessary action on a request for a change in zoning from TO-M 
Technical Office to PD Planned Development for a university/transit oriented development 
allowing a mix of uses.  The 51.64-acre site is located west of the KCS Railroad, south of 
Waterview Parkway, north of Synergy Park Boulevard, and east of the proposed extension of 
Rutford Avenue. 
 
Mr. Chavez gave a brief history of the project including the 2009 Master Plan and proposed 
changes to the Concept Plan for the University of Texas at Dallas (UTD).  He added that Phase 
II would cover property south of the railroad line, while Phase III would pertain to property 
north of the railroad line including a 296,000-square foot event center. 
 
Mr. Chavez also highlighted the proposed uses, development standards, and the Traffic Impact 
Analysis (TIA), which indicated future traffic mitigation elements that would have to occur at 
the time Phase III was developed.  In addition, he underscored the northern extension of Rutford 
Avenue, the proposed Cotton Belt rail line station, and the continuation of the Cottonwood 
Trail. 
 
Regarding the proposed event center, Mr. Chavez said there was language in the PD that stated 
if the event center was privately developed, a Special Permit would be required along with a 
revised TIA and both would have to come before the Commission.  However, if the center was 
developed publicly or by UTD, a TIA would still be required, but a Special Permit would not 
and neither would come before the Commission.  
 
Mr. Chavez concluded his presentation by reporting that street cross sections A through G were 
identical to those approved for Phase I with the exception of the build to zone, and street cross 
sections F and G were new.  He also presented a photograph of a Phase I street (Northside at 
UTD) to illustrate the type of street that would extend north to the railroad line. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked staff if a surface parking lot in Phase III would trigger the 
requirement for traffic mitigation.  She also wanted to know who would be financially 
responsible for any traffic mitigation. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied it was his understanding that a surface parking lot would not trigger the 
traffic mitigation, but suggested the traffic mitigation elements would begin when there was 
square footage development as opposed to just a surface parking lot.  He added that any 
mitigation costs would be covered by the property owner or developer. 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  3 

Commissioner Maxwell pointed out the proposed plan did not have the architectural images 
usually available in previous PDs but only contained verbiage “Building facades shall include 
architectural details and ornament to create variety and interest”, and asked staff if they had 
any concerns.  He also wanted to know if elevations were required when a PD was being 
submitted. 
 
Mr. Chavez said the verbiage was the same as in Phase I and the language allowed staff the 
flexibility to review the materials being used. 
 
Regarding having elevations submitted with a PD, Mr. Chavez stated that developers usually 
know the design and materials they want at the beginning of the PD process, but because the 
property in question will be developed in the future by a private developer, the language in the 
PD leaves room for flexibility and staff will monitor the design and materials as it did for Phase 
1. 
 
Chairman Bright asked staff to address the parking for the multifamily and why it was different 
from the usual City standard. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied that in TOD developments the parking for multifamily is reduced because of 
its adjacency to public transportation. 
 
With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Bill Dahlstrom, Partner at Jackson Walker, 2323 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas, representing 
UTD, thanked staff for their presentation and stated the proposed PD would basically be an 
extension of the first phase and was intended to be a transit oriented development.  He added 
that planning for the project included working with the City, UTD and Dallas Area Rapid 
Transit authority (DART). 
 
Mr. Dahlstrom concluded his presentation by stating the proposed PD was also consistent with 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan that labels the area as a transit village with uses including 
medium to high density residential, retail, entertainment, hospitality and offices, which was 
exactly what was being proposed.   
 
Dr. Calvin Jamison, Vice President of Administration, University of Texas at Dallas, 800 W. 
Campbell Road, Richardson, Texas, said work began with the City years ago to plan for a transit 
oriented development that would handle the ever increasing enrollment at the university, and the 
proposed PD would give UTD the flexibility to partner with outside developers to achieve the 
goal of creating a place where anyone could live, work, play and study.   
 
Dr. Jamison concluded his presentation by stating the university was cognizance of the impact it 
had in the City and felt the great partnership and open communication with the City and 
surrounding neighborhoods was integral to their decision making process. 

  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  4 

Commissioner Roland asked if it had always been the university’s goal to ground lease the 
property in question as opposed to using it for academic pursuits such as a research park. 
 
Dr. Jamison replied that one of the advantages of a PD were the options it provided to allow 
UTD to have in place the appropriate zoning to handle any need.  He added there was additional 
land for a research park west of Waterview Parkway. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked why UTD was partnering with outside developers as opposed to 
building their own dormitory buildings.   
 
Dr. Jamison said when he arrived in 2007, there were approximately 2,500 beds on campus and 
2,200 beds had been added in residence halls since that time, but there was currently a 2,000 
person waiting list for on-campus housing.  He added that the university would build some of 
the halls and allow the market to take care of the rest, but wanted to reserve their debt capacity 
for academic buildings. 
 
Commissioner Southard asked if the university had economic plans for an event center. 
 
Dr. Jamison replied that if the event center was built it would benefit not only the university 
with large gatherings such as graduations, but would provide a venue for surrounding school 
districts during the graduation season.  He also acknowledged that if planning started as soon as 
possible on the center, it would take approximately five years to complete. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked what the impact would be on the overall plan if Phase III was 
removed from consideration based in part on the amount of traffic it would bring to an already 
busy Waterview Parkway. 
 
Dr. Jamison replied that outside developers like to know that appropriate zoning was in place as 
opposed to waiting for zoning to be approved, which a PD for the two remaining phases would 
provide. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked the applicant to talk about the shuttle service provided and whether 
that service was helping with traffic congestion and concerns expressed by surrounding 
neighborhoods about the increase in traffic. 
 
Dr. Jamsion said six buses were running routes that moved approximately 1.3 million riders 
from areas such as CityLine and the McCallum area to the university, which in turn kept those 
vehicles off the city streets.  He added that an agreement had been signed with DART to take 
over the bus service and provide even larger buses to transport riders and possibly increase the 
ridership. 

 
Mr. John Geeslin, 1133 Bull Run, Richardson, Texas, President of Cottonwood Creek Civic 
Association, stated he had been authorized by the Board of Directors to express support for 
Phase II, but they had concerns about traffic especially along Floyd Road.  He added that 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  5 

assurances had previously been made by the City regarding traffic mitigation elements, but had 
not been fulfilled as yet.   
 
Mr. Geeslin pointed out that Phase I traffic had not been fully realized since Certificates of 
Occupancy (CO) were still being issued and questioned how a TIA could be accurate. 
 
Mr. Geeslin concluded his statement by asking the Commission to consider the long-term 
implications of approving 1,500 additional multifamily units to the area without further traffic 
enforcement and analysis. 
 
Chairman Bright called for any comments in opposition. 
 
Mr. Mike Flynn, 1138 Brandy Station, Richardson, Texas, question whether UTD had the right 
to build anything that did not support student studies or housing as listed in the original land 
deed.  He also expressed concerns over traffic, parking and wondered how the proposed retail or 
business buildings would benefit the students. 
 
Mr. Eric Pate, 1137 Bull Run, Richardson, Texas, prefaced his statement by stating he 
appreciated the direction UTD was taking with the PD, but took exception with putting Phase II 
and III together in one PD.   
 
Mr. Pate noted that during the public hearings for Phase I, Cottonwood Creek voiced concern 
over the possibility of increased traffic, which has become a reality, but also asked that each 
element of the future development be independently reviewed and Phase I should not set the 
precedent for the remaining phases.  He added that if Phase II and III were approved, it was not 
taking into account the increased traffic south of the railroad line and the impact on the 
neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Pate questioned the accuracy of the PD document pointing out errors in size of streets, 
omission of current traffic counts, and the fact the CO for Phase I had yet to be issued so the 
total impact of that phase was not known.  He said that to approve a development that was 
roughly two to three times larger than Phase I was irresponsible and asked to have Phase III 
removed from the current proposal. 
 
Chairman Bright called for any comments in rebuttal. 
 
Mr. Dahlstrom replied that the 2009 Comprehensive Plan showed many of the residential or 
hotel activities on the south side of the railroad line and the proposed PD would move those to 
the north side and direct the traffic flow towards Waterview Parkway.  He added that the 
residential units would not only house students, but also staff, faculty and administration. 
 
Regarding taking into consideration the Light Rail station parking, Mr. Dahlstrom said UTD 
would work with DART on a temporary parking facility while the station was being constructed 
and then long term parking plans to provide permanent parking on the north side of the railroad 
line, again directing the flow of traffic toward Waterview Parkway. 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  6 

Dr. Jamison highlighted some of the new academic buildings at UTD including the new Callier 
Center, new bio-engineering science building, and they are in the process of constructing a new 
math and science building.  He added they had received the CO on block 2 of Phase I and 
currently all but 17 units were occupied.   
 
Dr. Jamison concluded by reviewing some of the existing traffic mitigation elements. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked about the closure of the Loop Road on campus and if that was a 
temporary closure.  He also wanted to know if the proposed DART Rail station would be 
considered a commuter station or used more for the neighborhood and UTD students. 
 
Dr. Jamison replied it was a temporary closure due to the construction of student housing at 
Tatum Street and Waterview Parkway and the widening of Drive A.   
 
Regarding the DART Rail station, Dr. Jamison said the station would be used by both the UTD 
students and anyone who wanted to ride the Light Rail, but it was a Commuter Rail station and 
the university had made available approximately 150 parking spaces for the station. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked if there had been any discussions on widening Floyd Road. 
 
Dr. Jamison replied that if Floyd Road was widened it might encourage more traffic between 
Lookout Drive and Campbell Road; however, a new parking facility had been built at the 
southwest corner of the campus to encourage people to use the Waterview entrance as opposed 
to Floyd Road. 
 
In closing, Dr. Jamison said UTD was excited about all the changes coming to the campus, but 
at the same time was sensitive to the concerns of the community. 
 
Commissioner Springs asked if the traffic engineer for UTD had any comments to share. 
 
Mr. Scott Johnson, Kimley-Horn and Associates, 12750 Merit Drive, Dallas, Texas, said the 
traffic assumptions for Northside were made with the best information available at the time, but 
noted the current estimates were based on a suburban model and did not contain reductions for 
pedestrian and bicycle traffic so the numbers were “conservatively high”. 
 
Mr. Johnson pointed out that moving the event center, hotel and business tower to the north side 
of the railroad track oriented traffic to Waterview Parkway away from Synergy Park Boulevard 
and the northern portion of the campus. 

 
Regarding future traffic prediction, Mr. Johnson said to figure the compound growth rate on 
Waterview Parkway based solely on a model would be simplistic and not account for the 
changing nature of driving (i.e., driverless vehicles, less driving more rail or bus commuting). 
 
Commissioner Springs asked what assumptions were used for Phase III and how those 
assumptions influenced the TIA. 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  7 

 
Mr. Johnson replied that the full value for an isolated/suburban office use was applied, but it did 
not apply any values associated with the event center.   
 
With no further comments, in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner DePuy stated she was not opposed to the southern portion of Phase II, felt most 
of the traffic would be internal to the site, and felt the DART rail station would help pick up 
some of the extra traffic, but was still uncertain as to how she would vote. 
 
Commissioner Roland said he could not imagine living in the proposed development and using 
Floyd Road to Campbell Road to get to U.S. 75 when commuters could use President George 
Bush Turnpike (PGBT) on the north side of UTD.  He acknowledged the community input 
made in 2009 that expressed concerns about traffic, but noted there was also agreement on the 
desire for UTD to be an outstanding center for higher education and the proposed development 
was part of the changes that would have to take place to reach that goal. 
 
Regarding the question on deed restrictions from Mr. Flynn, Commissioner Roland said that 
when those restrictions were put in place over 50 to 60 years ago and they did not take into 
consideration future changes to the campus or surrounding community.  He added that he 
thought it was a good plan and would vote in favor. 
 
Chairman Bright stated he agreed with Mr. Roland and although there were questions about the 
event center, he felt there were safe guards built in to the PD to cover those concerns.   
 
Mr. Chavez noted that the proposed PD was similar to other TODs in the city where all 
development plans would be administratively approved. 
 
Chairman Bright said he did support the proposed PD as presented with the addition that a TIA 
would not be triggered until development started in Phase III. 
 
Commissioner DePuy said she originally thought a TIA would be triggered when a parking lot 
was built; however, staff clarified that traffic mitigation would start once buildings were built on 
the property. 
 
Mr. Chavez read from the proposed PD – “at the time of development of the property located 
north of the Cotton Belt rail line, the following shall be required”; in other words the traffic 
mitigation elements.  He suggested if the Commission wanted to be more specific they could 
provide a definition for development (i.e., “excludes surface parking for DART commuter rail 
service). 
 
Mr. Chavez also noted that installation of traffic signals would have to meet traffic warrants so 
he suggested that Item 2G should contain language similar to “installation of a traffic signal for 
Type A, Waterview Parkway median, would be made at the time traffic warrants.” 
Commissioner Springs said he thought the proposals for Phase II made sense, and pointed out 
the applicant’s own traffic engineer acknowledged the traffic study was based on broad 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  8 

assumptions with some missing pieces, which were enough unknowns in Phase III for him to 
suggest separating Phase II and III. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell agreed with Mr. Springs and felt the southern portion could be done by 
right, but he was not in favor of Phase III moving forward as currently planned. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell said he also agreed with Mr. Springs and Mr. Ferrell and would be in 
favor of removing Phase III from consideration based on the unknowns and assumptions. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor said he would prefer to support to Phase II and have Phase III come back at a 
future date when more information about traffic issues would be available.  He complimented 
Dr. Jamison and UTD on their planning, but did not think that separating Phase II and III would 
cause any undue hardship to the university, but would be acting conservatively while 
acknowledging local citizens’ concerns for traffic flow. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked staff if there would be any adverse effects on the Concept Plan if 
the PD was approved as presented and not developed for 20 years.   
 
Mr. Chavez replied that if the property was rezoned under the proposed conditions it would 
retain its zoning entitlements until the property owner requested a rezoning of the site in the 
future. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked if the proposed PD was approved as written, would a future change 
such as a smaller office tower be allowed. 
 
Mr. Chavez said that under the current PD the maximum proposal was for 519,000 square feet 
of office space so they could build something smaller, but nothing could exceed 519,000 square 
feet. 
 
Chairman Bright stated he was not in favor of separating the two phases and mentioned that 
other projects brought before the Commission also had unknowns and turned out to be great 
projects.  He added that based on past experience and the level of trust between the City and 
UTD, he did not have any concerns and thought the flexibility granted by the PD would provide 
for a good development. 
 
Commissioner Roland said that every Master Plan presented by the university had some type of 
event center, whether north or south of the railroad lines, and thought if the office building was 
labeled for a university administrative office or classrooms the concerns would be limited. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked staff what could be built in the Phase III section now if the zoning 
was not changed and if it was an office building why was a zoning change being proposed. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied they could build an office building under the current zoning, but it was the 
other uses – hotel, event center and multifamily that triggered the need for rezoning.  He added 
that if the event center was developed by UTD, a zoning change was not required, but if not, a 
rezoning request was required. 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  9 

Commissioner Ferrell said he did not think removing Phase III from the PD would cause any 
harm to the university. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked if the Phase III was removed and the university built the event 
center and office building, would they have to initiate traffic mitigation on Waterview Parkway. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied the City was responsible for a safe and efficient roadway system so the staff 
would be involved in the planning of an event center or office building. 
 
Commissioner DePuy said the tenant mix in the office building did not cause any concerns for 
her and thought the event center was important not only to the university but also for the 
community 
 
Commissioner Springs asked if the property already had zoning in place for 500,000 square feet 
of office space and, if so, he did not think removing Phase III would restrict the university.  He 
said he was interested in hearing from the applicant on the debate among the Commissioners. 
 
Before bringing the applicant back for comments, Mr. Chavez replied that constructing an office 
building would depend on the maximum Floor to Area Ratio (F. A. R.), but if the space was 
developed as additional classrooms the City would have no purview over the project. 
 
Chairman Bright said he felt allowing flexibility would allow for a better development. 
 
Dr. Jamison stated that requesting a PD would provide options for the university and reiterated 
that by right that UTD could do the projects under discussion, but by design had chosen to work 
with the City to make a better development.   
 
Commissioner Roland asked the Commission if the event center or office building was not the 
issue, was the hotel or multifamily causing the concerns. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell said that for him it was the unknown of the traffic impact and thought it 
was not the best idea to approve something that even with mitigation would cause more traffic 
congestion. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the office building was moved to another tract would that be 
acceptable and Mr. Ferrell replied that he thought making it smaller would be a possibility as 
long as the impact on traffic was mitigated. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked staff for the current traffic grade on Waterview Parkway. 
 
Mr. Johnson said he did not have an analysis of the existing year in the current TIA, but was 
looking at the long term analysis.  He added that most of the intersections were considered “D” 
or “E” with 24,000 vehicles per day and most of the congestion coming at peak hour times. 

 
Commissioner Maxwell said he did not have a problem with any of the uses or layout for Phase 
III, but was more concerned with the impact those uses would bring to the traffic on Waterview 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  10 

Parkway.  He acknowledged that UTD could do a development for university use by right, but 
noted that by going through the zoning process any developer opened themselves up to review 
by the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Springs stated his confidence in the quality of the proposed development; 
however, the cumulative effect of all the unknowns was causing him concern. 
 
Commissioner DePuy stated that after listening to the discussion she was in favor of the 
proposed PD and explained that Phase III could not come to fruition for many years and by that 
time more people would most likely be using public transportation. 
 
Commissioner Southard said that if were voting, he would vote to approve, but it would be an 
uneasy approval based on the unknowns associated with the future of the Cotton Belt. 
 
Chairman Bright pointed out there were unknowns with every project and no one could predict 
the future. 
 
Mr. Dahlstrom stated it was important to have the zoning in place which would allow them to 
start a project much quicker after going through the university’s processes.  He pointed out that 
the Commission took major leaps of faith for the CityLine project and that project turned out to 
be an outstanding development.  In addition, with the integrity of UTD backing the development 
of a transit oriented village and accompanying amenities, he asked the Commission to look at 
the plan in its entirety and not individual pieces. 
 
Mr. Dahlstrom also noted commitments made in the PD by UTD to continue to work with the 
City on the TIA as well as the commitment to work with DART to provide parking at the Light 
Rail station. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor said that with respect to those in attendance who spoke in opposition, and 
after listening to the comments from the Commission, he did not want to stand in way of 
progress and would rely on staff and UTD to address any issues. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-18 

as presented with the addition of two caveats that the construction of a DART 
commuter lot would not necessitate the traffic abatement listed in Item 2, and that the 
installation of a traffic signal when traffic warrants at Type A street and Waterview 
Drive; second by Commissioner DePuy.  Motion approved 4-3 with Commissioners 
Ferrell, Maxwell and Springs opposed. 

 
4. Zoning File 16-20 – Sultan Café:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval 

of a Special Permit for an expansion of an existing non-conforming smoking establishment.  
The property is zoned PD Planned Development and located at 201 S. Greenville Avenue, 
southeast corner of Greenville Avenue and Polk Street. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

September 6, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-09-06 CPCMinutes.doc  11 

Chairman Bright stated the applicant had requested to withdraw the application for a Special 
Permit, therefore, because the item was published as a public hearing, he opened the hearing.  
No comments in favor or opposed were received and the Chairman closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to accept the withdrawal of Zoning File 16-

20; second by Vice Chair Taylor.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

5. Zoning File 16-21 – Eastside Phase II:  Consider and take necessary action on a request to 
amend the PD Planned Development District for a mixed-use project by increasing the number 
of allowable apartment units and removing development rights for office and retail uses.  The 
property is located at 1705-1735 N. Greenville Avenue, west side of Greenville Avenue 
between Alma Road and Campbell Road. 
 
Chairman Bright stated the applicant had requested to withdraw the application to amend the PD 
Planned Development, therefore, because the item was published as a public hearing, he opened 
the hearing.  No comments in favor or opposed were received and the Chairman closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to accept withdrawal of Zoning File 16-21; 

second by Commissioner Southard.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Bright adjourned the regular 
business meeting at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Gerald Bright, Chairman 
City Plan Commission 

APPROVED




